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January 19, 2018 
 
Katy Bilisoly 
Applegate Group, Inc. 
1490 West 121st Ave., Suite 100 
Denver, CO 80234 
 
RE: Leyden Pit; DRMS File No. M-1983-139; Preliminary Adequacy Review  (AM01) 
 
Dear Ms. Bilisoly, 
 
The Division of Reclamation, Mining and Safety (Division) has completed its preliminary 
adequacy review of your 112 Construction Materials Reclamation Permit Amendment 
Application. The application was received on November 8, 2017 and was called complete for 
review on December 1, 2017. The decision date for this application is March 1, 2018. Please be 
advised that if you are unable to satisfactorily address any concerns identified in this 
review before the decision date, it will be your responsibility to request an extension of the 
review period. If there are outstanding issues that have not been adequately addressed 
prior to the end of the review period, and no extension has been requested, the Division will 
deny this application. 
 
The review consisted of comparing the application content with specific requirements of Rule 
6.1, 6.2, 6.4, and 6.5 of the Minerals Rules and Regulations of the Colorado Mined Land 
Reclamation Board for the Extraction of Construction Materials. In general the application was 
substantially adequate, however, as with most applications there are a few items that will require 
the submittal of additional information or clarification of the existing information. Inadequacies 
are identified under the respective exhibit heading along with suggested corrective actions to 
correct them. 
 
1. The Division received comments from History Colorado, the Colorado Division of Water 

Resources, and the Army Corps of Engineers.  The letters are attached for your review.  
Please address the comments noted in the letters and make any changes to the application as 
necessary. 

 
6.4.5 Exhibit E – Reclamation Plan 
 
3. The Reclamation Plan specifies the seed mix approved in Technical Revision No. 3 

(TR03) will be used to revegetate the site. Please note that only the seed mix was  
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changed through TR03. In accordance with the original Reclamation Plan, the 
Operator shall apply mulch at a rate of 2 tons per acre. Please respond. 
 

4. The revised Reclamation Plan addresses the reclamation of several small detention 
dams which serve to attenuate flooding of the residential properties to the east of the 
mine. The original Reclamation Plan Map (Sheet 3 of 7, dated 6/14/1983) shows the 
ponds will be graded to direct runoff toward Leyden Gulch. Pursuant to Rule 3.1.6(1), 
disturbances to the prevailing hydrologic balance of the affected land and of the 
surrounding area and to the quantity or quality of water in surface and groundwater 
systems both during and after the mining operation and during reclamation shall be 
minimized. Please describe where surface runoff will be directed after the detention 
ponds have been reclaimed and demonstrate the residential properties to the east of 
the mine will be protected from flooding. 

 
5. Please clarify if the large stockpiles identified in the revised Reclamation Plan will be 

graded in place, or if the stockpiles will be eliminated and used for reclamation of 
other areas. 

 
6. There are several product stockpiles located west of the Pioneer retail sales yard. The 

Reclamation Plan Map does not identify the stockpiles as being within areas which 
will be regraded. Please describe how the stockpiles will be reclaimed. 

 
7. The Reclamation Plan states grade control structures may be required. Please describe 

what type of grade control structures may be necessary. 
 

8. Please describe what topsoil resources are available for reclamation of the detention 
ponds. In addition, confirm topsoil will be replaced to a depth of 2 to 4 inches as 
approved under Technical Revision No. 3. 

 
6.4.6 Exhibit F – Reclamation Plan Map 
 
9. The Legend of the Reclamation Plan Map contains a label for ‘New Permit 

Boundary’. The permit boundary is not being altered through the Amendment 
Application. Please remove this label from the Reclamation Plan Map and include a 
label which identifies the Pioneer sales yard as the Industrial/Commercial portion of 
the site. 
 

10. As required by Rule 6.2.1(2)(e), the acceptable range of map scales shall not be larger 
than 1 inch = 50 feet nor smaller than 1 inch = 660 feet. Please revise the 
Reclamation Plan Map to meet the acceptable range of map scales. 

 
11. Please revise the Reclamation Plan Map to include a labeled permit boundary which 

encompasses 320 acres. 
 
 



Ms. Bilisoly 
Page 3 
January 19, 2018 

   

 
12. As required by Rule 6.4.6(a), the Reclamation Plan Map must show the proposed 

topography with contour lines of sufficient detail to portray the direction and rate of 
slope of all reclaimed lands. It is not clear if the contour lines in the area of the 
detention ponds represent the current slope of the land or the slope of the land after 
reclamation is performed. Please ensure the revised Reclamation Plan Map contains 
contour lines reflecting the post-reclamation topography, such that the Division can 
determine stormwater drainage pathways. 

 
6.4.7 Exhibit G – Water Information 
 
13. Please specify how you will comply with the Division of Water Resources 

requirements outlined in the attached letter dated December 13, 2017.  
 

This concludes the Division’s preliminary adequacy review of this application. Please remember 
that the decision date for this application is March 1, 2018. As previously mentioned, if you are 
unable to provide satisfactory responses to any inadequacies prior to this date, it will be your 
responsibility to request an extension of time to allow for continued review of this 
application. If there are still unresolved issues when the decision date arrives and no extension 
has been requested, the application will be denied. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at (303)866-3567 x8116. 
  
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 

Michael A. Cunningham 
Environmental Protection Specialist 
 
Enclosures (3) 
 
CC: Wally Erickson, DRMS 
  
 
 




















	Adequacy Review No. 1 (AM01)
	DWR Comment (AM01)
	Comment_History Colorado
	Comment_ACOE

